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Jefferson County is situated in- the extreme north-
west portion of Kentucky's Bluegrass region and it is
bordered by Oldham, Shelby, Spencer and Bullitt Counties.
Jefferson County has over fifty miles of Ohio River
frontage. The middle and western part of the county is
an almost unbroken level ‘plain, while the gently rolling
hills of the eastern uplands are bordered by the river
knobs. Jefferson was one of three original counties h
formed from Virginia's County of Kentucky in 1780. The P
name Jefferson County was in honor of Thomas Jefferson §
then Governor of Virginia. The territory of the county - : !
has provided land for twenty-six other counties or portions ,
of them. S . e

§

The most important geographic feature is the Ohio River /
and the Falls of the Ohio. The Falls are the reason this 3
community developed as travellers going down river had
to stop and portage around the Falls or risk the various
chutes diiring the periods of high water. The ¢ity of
Louisville developed from 1778 when George Rogers Clark and
his groups of settlers landed on Corn Island, and
Jefferson County developed also with various stations
which are shown on John Filson's map of 1784 (see map 1).
Most of these stations developed along Beargrass Creek or
its tributaries. Other important creeks along which
settlement developed were Harrods Creek, Goose Creek,
Pond Creek and Floyd's Fork.:

ST R

The Wilderness Road which came west from the Cumberland (
Gap, came thrpugh the southeastern part of Jefferson
County. Many settlers coming overland came into :
Jefferson along this route. Another important geographical -
feature was the presence of a vast alluvial plain in the. -~ - i
south-central portion of the county. A great bed of New -
Albany shale, a regsult of the Denonian Age, lies elose to the
surface of the ground. The wetness of this area shows on the
early maps such:as Filson's (map 1) and Munsell's (map 2).
This wet area was sparsely developed until the twentieth century.
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The vast majority of historic resources are structures
which have architectural significance. These structures
mostly are of a residential nature. The types and styles
of buildings represented include Georgian,both double
pile (JF225,260,458) and the I-style (JF 25, 72, 127, 148
182,208,217,215,220,221,229,278,298,311,520). Several
two-thirds, or hall-parlor plan, houses are in the
County.(JF 214,282,66) :

’

A number of these modified Georgian houses are
transitional structures which exhibit Greek Revival
characteristics (JF-452) and at mid-century begin to
exhibit Italianate features (JF 377,629) both in single
and double pile houses. Log structures are represented
in the nomination but few are free standing(JF 110,
291,620,632). Most log structures have:bgen-incoegporated
into other structures or exist as dependencies.(JF38,96,463)
A group of unique one-story brick houses exist, the
majority of which are in the Jeffersontown area indicating
perhaps a master-builder who lived in the area.(JF 209,223,

224,279,216). JF-356 is the same type o6f house but
is frame.

Several one-and-one-half-story residences exist
but they are a minority (JF-213,70,500)s An unusual one-
and-one-half-story house is JF-463,a stone structure
with two front doors. The Italianate style is represented

in several structures (JF-436,588) while the Italian
Villa has only two examples.(JF 14 and 662).

The Gothic Revival is exhibited in a few structures
in the Anchorage area (JF 602,612) and several others
(JF 210,384) of which JF 310 and 599 are the best examples.
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The late nineteenth century and its variety of
architectural styles is exhibited best in the Anchorage
area where there are examples of Queen Anne (JE£- 607),
Shingle (JF 605)and Neo-Classical (JF 603 ,310,619)., Other
late nineteenth century structures are JF- 154 218, 640.

The early twentieth century is well represented
in the Nitta Yuma, Glenview and Upper River Road area
where there are~a number of homes in Colonial Revival e ol
. (JF 551%543%542%541* 5314 ) Spanish Revival (JF 5537 5491‘)2 '
~'Tudor Revival 4JF548*547*545 ) Modified Shingle(JF546%
‘535ﬁ2* JF 156 and 157 represent the Arts and Crafts
in the twentieth century. The vast majority of the
structures are of brick. There are a«number of frame
structures(JF 249,230, 221,235,457,453 563k§66ﬁ621 635 646)
and several stone structures. Many of the structures are
not pure examples of their period but are vernacular
structures.

The structures are spread across the county;
however there is a higher concentration in the east
and southeast portion of the county as these areas were
more densely populated due to the terrain:and water-
shed.

The approximate percentages of the use of buildings
are Residential-84 %, Commercial- 03% Religous- 4.5%,
Educational-1 %, Other—7 5%

The survey was conducted by three teams from the
Kentucky Heritage Commission in January and February
of 1877. These teams included: Anthony James, architectural
historian; Mary Cronen Oppel, historian: Carolyn Torma,
historian; Dr. Kenneth Gibbs, architectural historian,
William Broberg, historian.
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The survey was geographically complete. Every
road was traveled and every structure indicated on
USGS 15 minute quadrangle:maps.wasvvigually examined.
Individual structures that'met: certain minimum standards
of architectural or historical significance were mapped,
described, documented, photographed, and given a designation
number, consisting of the Smithsonian designation for
Jefferson County, JF, and a number. All of this information
was recorded on a Kentucky Historic Resources Inventory
Form., '

Once the field survey was completed, historic research
was conducted both to supplement the individual surveyed
sites and in order to write a historical essay.

All survey material was then evaluated and each site
evaluated against the National Register criteria.

Inventory forms for each nominated site can be found
under Item 8. The number of sites surveyed was 662
the number of sites being nominated in the Multiple

Resource National Register nomination is 143.%

The sites selected as meeting the criteria for
the National Register were rewviewed with the staff of
the Jefferson County Office of Historic Preservation who
prepared the Multiple Resource Nomination by completing
research, providing technical data, ownership data and
other pertinent material under a survey and planning
grant from the Kentucky Heritage Commission.

Three historic districts were determined as being
eligible as a district for the National Register. These
include the Anchoragé Historic Districty; Nitta Yuma Historic ¥X

District and Glenview Historic DistrictJ¥ The Anchorage e AT
Historic District had been submitted in 1976 but was , V;i
returned. This area was evaluated and it was determined e

that a number of structures would meet the National
Register criteria individually but that there were
too many newer structures to make a large district.

*Including within that total, 1 district (Anchorage Historic District
with 8 buildings, and the Waverly Hills Tuberculosis Sanitarium Historic

Buildings, which includes 3 structures). Excluded from the total is
Glenview and Nitta Yuma Historic Districts and all other sites not approved
Tsr +ha PRarxrrtarr BAanvrAd
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A small district was defined which would meet
the criteria with no intrusions. - Individual
structures which meet the eriteria are included in the
Jefferson County Multiple Resource Nomination as well as
a small Anchorage Historic District.

The Nitta Yuma District is a residential district as
is the Glenview Historic District. Description and
the Statement of Significance can be found in Item 8
for each district.

A Middletown Multiple Resources District was i submitted
for the National Register in 1977. This Middletown '
District hasd been reevaluated and the individual &tructures
which meet the criteria have been inc¢luded in the Jefferson
County Multiple Resources Nomination. Several structures
in Middletown have been eliminated since the initial sub-
mission, ' '

One individual site,Nunnlea (JF-224), had been sub-
mitted to the Department of Interior previously. and was returned
for further work. This site is resubmitted within the
context of the county's development and its relationship
to two other sites connected with the same family (JF 223 & 225).

The area was not surveyed for archeological resources
at this time. '
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Jefferson County is celebrating its two-hundredth-anniversary
in 1980, for the County was chartgred on May 1, 1780 by the
Virginia Legislature. 1In two hundred years of development and
progress there are still a subgtantial number of resources
which are historically 'and architecturally significant.

The historic resources correspond to the development patterns in
the county, to geographic and topographical configurations

and the settlement trends. 1In terms of architectural history,
Jefferson County reflects a continuum of architectural trends

in the late eighteenth century, the nineteenth century and into the
twentieth century. Almost every major stylistic trend is repre-
sented. The structures are not always pure examples of a certain
style but represent the area, the background of the building and
are, in some cases, more of a vernacular nature. The historic
resources range from a simple log cabin, to a brick I-style,
to a Gothic Revival cottage, to an Italianate house, to a
Tudor Revival mansion and end with a futuristic modern home.
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Early Settlement to 1800

The first settlers in Jefferson County were recipients
of Virginia land grants for military service in the French
and Indian War. They came from Virginia, Pennsylvania and
the area which would become West Virginia. Surveyers were in
the falls area in 1773 and two of these surveyers, Dr. John
Connelly and Captain Thomas Bullitt laid out a town after
surveying several thousand acres.

In May of 1778, George Rogers Clark led one hundred and
fifty militia recruits to the falls to conquer the British
in the Illinois country. Families accompanied Clark and
settled on Corn Island. By 1782 a second fort had been built
on shore, Jefferson County had been established by the Virginia
legislature and Jefferson County's first court was held.

At the same time that Clark and his settlers were fortifying
near the falls and establishing the city of Louisville,
Jefferson County was beginning to develop. Because of the
Indian problem small fortified stations were established
at various sites (see map 1). None of these remain but the
majority were in the northeast and southeast portions of
the county where higher and more fertile ground could be
found. The central portion of the county had to contend with
the lowlands and marshes. There were settlers in the south-
west portion of the county such as the Miller and Farnsley(JF-38}:
families.

One of the earliest industries was the production of salt
in the southern part of the county. The Bullitt's Lick
Saltwork in what is now part of Bullitt County was erected
in 1979. Mann's Lick in Jefferson County began salt pro-
duction about 1787. Salt was important for meat preservation.
Early buffalo traces were visible in the area of the salt-
works. None of the vestiges of this industry remain.
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Indian raids were intense during this early period.
The most notable incidents included the Long Run Massacre,
Floyd's Defeat, the murder of Abraham Lincoln's grandfather
in 1786 and the Chenoweth family massacre (JF-657).

Early structures were built to withstand these attacks
and according to oral tradition the "0ld Wilderness Fort"
had gun holes in the logs and numerous arrowheads.were found
inbedded in the log structure{JF-259). Another early
fortification was the sturdy stone house at Solddiérs Reétreat
of which only the outbuildings remain (JF-317).

During this same period Colonel Richard Taylor(JF-593),
a Revolutionary War hero, and his family came from Virginia
and settled in the eastern part of the county. His son Zachary
lived there until the age of twenty-four and later became the
twelfth President of the United Statess Other early settlers
were Alexander Scott Bullitt, nephew of Captain Thomas Bullitt,
and his wife Priscilla who settled on a one-thousand acre farm
in 1787 which they called Oxmoor (JF-313-314).

Louisville which had been incorporated in 1780 was at the
heart of the county and was thriving. However before 1800
there were several other incorporated areas within the county.
Transylvania was a town laid out by the trustees of Transylvania
Seminary in 1798. They had received the land from the Virginia
legislature in 1780. It was at the mouth of Harrods Creek(JF-452).
The Creek had a number of mills on it and the town was active
into the early nineteenth:century after which it virtually
disappeared. The inland waterway which Harrods Creek provided
was not needed after the opening of the Portland Canal at the
falls in 1830.

In 1794 the town of Newtown was laid out on land owned by
James F. Moore(JF-96),an+ early settler. Newtown,near Mann's
Lick,did not take hold probably because of the swamp and low-
lands in this area. Two other towns were incorporated in 1797
in the eastern part of the county. Middletown was laid out by
William White,a member of the state legislature who had emigrated
from Virginia.
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Middletown prospered and was a thriving commercial center with a
tavern (JF-354), many log (JF-352) and brick structures (JF-355-357)
and a stone house (JF-349).

The other early town was -Brunerstown or Jeffersontown.
The land had been owned by Colonel Frederick Geiger who sold
land to Abraham Bruner in 1794. Bruner:platted the town. No known
structures remain in the town proper from this very early period,
although many from the early nineteenth century survive(JF-278- 282).

Another industry that was important in addition to the salt
works was the erection of mills. Mills provided the early
settlers with a device for grindlng their corn and wheat. George
Hikes had come from Pennsylvania in about 1790 to the Buechel area.
Hikes built a grist mill, a saw mill and a carding machine,
in addition to planting orchards and operating a dlstlllery. John
Smith built a mill on Cedar Creek in the Fern Creek area in
the 1780s.. A man named Mundell operated a grist and saw mill on
Floyd's Fork and later sold it to John and Peter Funk (JF-182).

During this early period of development the materials used
for houses included log, brick, and &tone. The majority of early
log structures have vanished or have been drastically reworked,
but the Multiple Resource Nomination includes several 31gn1f1cant
log buildings. The log structures which are free standing are
the following: JF-:6324620,110,259,291,352,367,652, Some have had
clapboard added. Log structures whleh are vvvvv dependen01es or attached
to other structures are the following: JF-38,96,230,260,359,463,
Architectural development until 1800 1ncluded the use of stone
for building (JF317,333,393,657,128,196,259,260). Several
significant brick structures remain such as JF—392 an I-Style
house, JF-552 and 527, home of Zachary Taylor and JF-524 last
home of George Rogers Clark and JF208 home of early settler,
Abraham Hite.
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Early churches in the community included the Chenoweth
Run Baptist Church founded in 1792 and a German Lutheran and
German Presbyterian Reformed in Jeffersontown. In the south-
western part of the county a group of Presbyterian settlers from
Pennsylvania built the Pennsylvanla Run Church (JF-116). Tnere
were also early schools in the county but no structures remain
from this period.

1800-1850

The first half of the nineteenth century was a period of
rapid growth and development. Incorporated areas such as
Middletown prospered. A fine general store opened in Middletown
in 1813 known as- the Head, Hobbs and Laurence General Store. The
town also had a cigar factory, a comb factory, a cabinet shop,

a blacksmith shop, a tailor and several manufacturers of leather
and woolen goods. Middletown's commercial importance over
Louisville faded after.the opening of the Portland Canal at the
falls in 1830.

The area in general after 1800 assumed a more civilized
atmosphere,one that was conducive to the social, polltlcal .
and structural progress of the county. The number of mill 51tes
multiplied on all the major streams; these mills included floux
and saw mills. Other industries included expansion of the salt
works in the southwestern part of the county but only until the
appearance of steamboats on the Mississippi and Ohio Rivers.

As it became cheaper to import, by 1830 the salt dndustry had
ceased.

The City of Louisville had numerous factories such as
tobacco, nail and carriage works. Louisville had a foundry, a
sugar refinery, brick yards and other amenities which were used
by the citizens in the county.

Churches and schools continued to develop. Although very
few of these early church bulldlngs remain,the Pennsylvania Run
Church from 1840 does remain (JF-116).

The transportation routes included the Ohio River. Harrods
Creek at Transylvania was a place where goods were shipped inland
on timbered routes. The Lex1ngton and Louisville turnpike,
which became the oldest pike in the state, was bullt in 1820 and
ran through Middletown from Louisville. . - : - R
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It was the state*s first road with a rock bed and tollgates
provided one source of funds for its maintenance. Stagecoaches
carried passengers, while freight wagons carried goods on the
regular roads. Beside the regular stage route going east from
Louisville, was the Salt River Road, part of which later became
Dixie Highway. At first it ran to the Salt River at what later
became known as West Point, and: then, about 1837, it became

the Louisville and Nashville Turnpike. Tolls were collected
and stagecoaches made regular runs on the pike. Later, in 1849,
construction began on the Louisville and Taylorsville Pike.

The structures built during this period, aside from churches
and a few commercial structures,were sturdy farmhouses, the
majority in brick burned on the place. The most popular style
was a vernacular, Georgian, five-bay I-house " although a
few double pile existed. As the decades passed the detail
became Greek Revival and then turned to the Italianate. The
britk structures from about 1800 to 1850 include JF-357,382,
391,394,395,13,25,30,434,458,148,145,38,72,127,516,520,593,
659,660,212,214,215,217,220,225,229,249,260,278,282. There
were several stone structures, the most substantial of which is
the Benjamin Head House in Middletown (JF-349). Other stone
buildings are JF-333,463,478,492,521,171. JE-463, the Yager
Housey is unigue in the county with its one-and-one-half-stories
and two front doors. Frame structures from the first half of
the nineteenth century include JF-116,128,221,230,235, all
of which hawe very individual characteristics and do not fall
into a specific type.
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1850-1900

Jefferson County continued to prosper in the latter half of the
nineteenth century and the agricultural base of the economy
flourished. Mills were still abundant. The remaining mill in

the county was built at mid-century (JF-549-National Register-
1978) on the Wolf Pen Branch by Herman Miller. Robert Fisher's
mill in Fisherville was in operation by the 1840's as he had bought
it from a man named Howard. Fisher's mill prospered and the town
of Fisherville grew up near the mill site on Floyd's Fork in the
1850's (JF-249-245). Mid-century brought a substantial change in
transportation modes for the Louisville and Nashville Railroad was
chartered by the Kentucky State Legislature in 1850. The network
of tracks in the region was not complete until several decades later
but this rapid mode of travel for both goods and passengers would
bring about a change in development. The railroads played an im-
portant part in the development of small communities such as

Hobb's Station, which later became the town of Anchorage. In 1851
the Louisville and Frankfort Railway was built and Hobb's station
grew up at the tracks. This route allowed businessmen to commute-
to Louisville by train and establishccountry homes. Thus, the

town of Anchorage blossomed. The section of the county to the north
of Hobb's Station underwent similar development when the Louisville
and Cincinnati Railroad laid tracks through the area.

The town of Lyndon sprang up along the Louisville and Nash-
ville Railwead tracks just west of Anchorage. Lyndon was named
by Alvin Wood who bought about two hundred acres there in 1865.
Although the L&N tracks went through the community, travellers had
to ¢go to Gilman's Point, later known as St. Matthews, to catch a
train. Wood and the L&N Railroad reached an agreement where he
furnished the land and built a station, after which trains began
stopping. In 1871, the station that Wood built became a regular
stopping place for L&N trains. Also a Post Office was installed
in the station.

In 1874 the Elizabethtown Paducah Railroad;later knoéwn as
the Illinois Central (JF-4), was laid through the scuthwest portion
of the county. Valley Station.was built to serve it
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in the vicinity of a few houses and a nearby store; the residents
adopted the name of the depot for their community.

The L&N tracks of course went south and they passed through
the Wetwoods, across Big Island, bringing this section of the
county in closer to the city of Louisville.

The Louisville, Harrods Creek and Westport Railroad company
began operating in 1875. The tracks never reached their original
destination of Westpart in Oldham County; instead it terminated
at Sand Hill, or Prospect, which is what the workers called the
end of the line. In 1887 a new station was built at Glenview
(JF-550) for the rail line. This contributed to the development
of the community known as Glenview.

Another development at the end of the century was the area
known as Nitta Yuma in the eastern part of the county. This area
also depended on the train. On the opposite, southwest side of
the county special excursion trains took people to Pleasure
Ridge Park picnic area and dance hall which were located on
Muldrough Ridge. A frame hotel, now gone, provided vacation rooms
for summer guests.

The railroad had also been a crucial factor in Jefferson
County during the Civil War. The area became a supply depot due
to the network of tracks already in existence. There was little
disruption except for the division between the Northern and South-
ern sympathizers. In 1862 the hills surrounding Middletown were
the scene of the county's two most notable Civil War skirmishes.
Union forces pushed back attacking Confederate troops several
miles east to Floyd's Fork. The Southern troops'attempted assault
on Louisville was resumed but the Northern troops prevailed.

These encounters were among those that prefaced the Battle of Perry-
ville. During the same year there were frequent guerrilla skir-
mishes in the Jeffersontown area. Soldiers from both armies

camped in the extreme southeastern part of the county, the Fair-
mount precinct, and forced farmers of the area to supply them

with food. Raids upon fields, orchards and stables occured fre-
quently. The war disrupted agrlcultural production and normal
commercial activity in Jefferson County and repressive polices
stifled economic and social development after the war.
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However, Louisville and Jefferson County were quick to recover

since Kentucky had maintained a politically advantageous position

as a border state with an established railroad system. The area had
the extra advantage of being an important trade route center with
the accompanying commercial control. Consequently, the increased
product demand that resulted from the Civil War eventually acted

as a stimulus to economic activity throughout the county.

The racing tradition which began early in the city was en-
livened with the founding of the Woodlawn Race Track, hailed as
the "Saratoga of the West. It was built in 1866 in the St. Matthews
area near the L&N Railroad tracks. The Woodlawn went bankrupt in
1871 but racing was revived. in 1875 with the opening of the
Louisville Jockey Club later known as Churchill Downs.

Various enterprises flourished including a tavern in the
Buechel area which became a stopping place for drovers and their
cattle on their way to the Bourbon Stock Yards in Louisville.
Grocery stores sprang up along the Brownsboro Turnpike in 1885
and in 1899 in the Okolona community. A fair was held by the
Farme#s and Fruit Growers Association which had been established
in 1880. The fair near Fern Creek encduraged agriculturists. The
St. Matthews area also flourished in last quarter of the century and
became known for its potato farms. A nursery began in 1880 called
Nanz & Neuner Florists who cultivated thirty acres. Also a
general store organized by the Bauer Brothers in 1887 soon became
the largest in the county outside theteity.

An increase in the number of schools in Jefferson County was
another result 6f economic acceleration during the last half of the
nineteenth century. There were three private schools+iin Anchorage.
Bellewood Seminary, an exclusive school for girls, was famous
throughout the South during the Civil War. Two other schools were
Pine Hill Boarding School and Forest Military Academy (JF-650).

The Jefferson Female Academy had been founded in Middletown in 1855.
The East Cedar Hill Institute was begun in 1869 by Cleo F.C.Coon
in her fathers home near Fisherville (JF-235).
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A number of churches were begun after the Civil War but few remain.
The Memorial Chapel in Anchorage has only a part of the structure
standing (JF-637) while the Gothic Revival Cooper Memorial Church
on Preston remains intact (JF-95).

Building continued in force after the Civil War,in fact the
city of Louisville experienced a building boom. In the county
new structures were built both before and after the war.

Substantial brick houses continued to be built. A number re-
flected the traditions of the I-house, , others espoused
Greek Revival tendencies,while some displayed subtle Italianate
features (JF-377,213,216,222,425,513,523,224,279,309,286). The
Gothic Revival had made something of an impact in the county
and there are a significant number of structures reflecting the
influence of A.J. Downing (JF-384,209,210,353,599,602,612,614,629,
650,95,209). The Italianate and Italian Villa style were popular
in the city of Louisville but relatively few structures in those .
styles were erected in the county (JF-436,490,643,588,662,454,14).
Most of the above mentioned structures were of brick but there were
also frame structures built in varying styles with a concentration
of Neo-Colonial at the end of the century (JF-356,566%542,608, 609,
610,621). The Shingle Style was most popular in the Anchorage area
where a considerable amount of building took place during the last
decade of the nineteenth century (JF-154,605,606,607,615,618). An
interesting group of one-story brick houses with hipped roofs is
clustered in the Jeffersontown area. They were built in the 1850s
and 60s {(JF-216,224,223,279). Most of the revival styles in archi-
tecture of the nineteenth century are reflected to at least some
degree in the county. The Richardsonian Romanesque,while not ref -
lected in the county,was popular in the city &6f Louisvillecespecially
in the 0l1d Louisville heighborhood (National Register 1976).



.
o

/Form No. 10-300a
(Hev. 10-74)

UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR FOR NPS USE ONLY

NATIONAL REGISTER OF HISTORIC PLACES
INVENTORY -- NOMINATION FORM

NATIONAL PARK SERVICE

CONTINUATION SHEET ITEM NUMBER 8 PAGE 11

1900-1978

The transition from the nineteenth to the twentieth century
marked a distinctive change in lifestyles and activities of
Jefferson County residents. Increases in financial activity,
real estate turnover and utilization of leisure time: for re-
Creational pursuits were factors affecting the lives of citizens . =
of the county in the early twentieth century. '

The great impetus to all three of these changes was a more
efficient and extensive transportation system that had developed
in the county, based on the railroads and interurban lines. The
L & N Railroad had substantially increases in size and holdings
during the latter part of the nineteenth century, ‘and by 1900 .
was providing extensive passenger service within Jefferson County. |
At the turn of the century, Electric Interurban Railroad Company, \
a subsidiary of the Louisville and Interurban Railroad Company's 2
Prospect line was unique in the sense that it was the company's :
only route that was standard gauge and which. .did nof conform
to the 5' gauge used by the city street cars.

i
3

After the turn of the century Louisville was the scene of
operations for four trolley and interurban lines. Under the
direction of the Louisville and Interurban Railroad seven inter-
urban lines operated in Jefferson County in addition to five lines to
Indiana. These lines provided a definite stimulus to the growth
and development of county communities. Anchorage's first commercial
zoning came with the advent of the electric interurban train in
1901. Business establishments were confined to the area adjoin-
ing the train station on Station Road and the adjpdéning bloék
of Evergreen Road. When the community's first civic league
solicited the services of the Olmsted Brothers, nationally known
landscape architects, the interurban railway figured significantly
in thﬁ@g plan for town planning.

In 1908 the interurban line ran along Bardstown Road to Fern
Creek, where there was a terminal and freight house. In 1910 the

first electric car of the Louisville and Eastern Railway, which

became the Louisville and Interurban Railway in 1912, ran between
Louisville and Shelbyville (JF-336). This line was significant
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in the history of Middletown in that it provided rapid and conven-
ient transportation to and from Louisville, The interurban cars"’
also ran from Louisville to Fern Creek with much the same effect

as in other areas such as Jeffersontown, Valley Station and Okolona.
By 1914 the electric interurban opened up all the way to Orell,

a small settlement several miles south of Valley Station. The
small communities along thei:interurban line route began to grow
under the influence of the new impetus it provided. Lyndon,

for example, came to be a more substantial community because of

its 1ocation on the LaGrange line. The building of banks furthered
the financial boost experienced by .communities along the 'inter-
urban lines. The bank of St. Matthews, organizea in 1906 and pre-
sided over by Henry Bauer, conducted bus1ness in a small building
next door to Bauer's Grocery. The Bank of Buechel was organized

in 1909, chiefly to stimulate agricultural production, and the Bank
of Middletown (JF-656) was created one year later. ‘

The kailroads continued to carry passengers, but they were
also concerned with freight, particularly imported products and the
county's exports, which were loaded at various county produce -
centers. One such center was at St. Matthews where a produce
exchange was organized in 1905 to sell potatoes and onions co-
operatively at better prices for the farmers. The organlzatlon
was incorporated in 1910; by 1911 St. Matthews was the
largest potato exchange 1n the world. At that time several
hundred farmers were raising 5,000 acres of potatoes per year.
Eastern Jefferson County's fertile fields of loam-type soil were
suited for potatoes. In addition, the climate enabled the farmers
to raise two crops per year.

Ahother indication of growth along the interurban routes was

extension of publlc services. In the early 1900s: telephone
and electric services were begun for the Anchorage community.
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The Anchorage sSchool began in 1911 (JF-611) and a free public
school was opened in Middletown in 1909. In that same year
Waverly Hills (JF-75,76,77) was built off Dixie Highway, thereby
providing the county with a tuberculosis sanitorium. In 1911 the
Louisville Gas and Electric Company provided services to Middletown
and in 1914 a water company and fire department were established
at Anchorage (JF-614).

The opening years of the twentieth century were a time of
Sunday outings and summer vacations in the county. Anchorage
was a popular spot for vacations (JF-662) as was Fisherville with
its Blue Rock Hotel, now gone. In the 1890s and into the early
years of the twentleth century, the South Park Fishing Club operated
along a lake dug by the L&N Railroad as a water supply for steam
locomotives. A ninety-eight room hotel behind the club was
supposedly manufactured in Chicago and shipped to Jefferson County -
in sections. Both the Club and the hotel are not extant.

Real estate development began a significant change in- the
early part of the century, Land that was once strlctly agricul tural
began to be subdivided. Subdivisions had occured in the city of
Louisville in the nlneteenth century but the first true subdivision
in the county did not come about until the late nineteenth and
early twentieth century. The large tracts which been land grants
in the eighteenth century were divided continously over -the years
but were for the most part divided for farms and agricultural pur-
poses along with residential purposes.  This was different from
the small, single purpose lots of a twentieth century subdivision.

The initial subd1v151on in the St. Matthews area was in 1907
when Henry and Emma Koeller divided their property into twenty
lots and offered them for sale. The next subdivision in
St. Matthews was in 1912 when Mary Nanz divided her land into thirty
-five parcels. There had been earlier subdivisions in the Glenview
area with Wood Side Place being platted in 1899, Generally every
sizable community along the railway and interurban lines in the
county underwent substantial development during the flrst quarter'
of the twentieth century. . .



Form No. 10-300a
(Rev. 10-74)

UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR
NATIONAL PARK SERVICE

NATIONAL REGISTER OF HIST ORICPLACES'
INVENTORY -- NOMINATION FORM

Historic Resources of Jefferson County

CONTINUATION SHEET ' ITEM NUMBEE, g PAGE - 14

Great efforts were made to reclaim the Wet Woods area in the

south -central part of the county.. Drainage ditch programs were
initiated at great cost and some of the land was reclaimed although
there are still major flooding and drainage problems in that
section of the county.

Toll gates were removed at the beginning of the 1900s- but
it was not until the 1920s that significant improvements of county
roads began to occur. The Bardstown Pike, originally a buffalo
trail from the Ohio River ,to the Salt River, was paved in 1922;
previously it had been of crushed rock sprayed with oil to keep
down the dust. By 1937 U.S. 60, which comnected Louisville and
Middletown, was completed. Although it by-passed the main business
district, a boom in Middletown's business life resulted in 1938
when Taylor Drug Store built a group of stores just off U.S. 60
as the county's first shopping center.

The stock market crash of 1929 and the Great Depression that
followed were financially disruptive to the interurban system of
transportation. The Interurban Company was still under the:buxrden :
of construction debts and land holders began to demand their money.
Having no hope of a substantial freight business with its non-stan-
dard track gauge and eompetition from the L&N, the Louisville and
Interurban Company was essentially flependent upon passenger
traffic. The spectacular:increase in the popularity of the auto-
mobile and the extensive hard road projects of the 1930s drastic-
ally reduced the interurbans'passenger market. Branch-by-branch
service was reduced beginning with Okolona in 1931 and ending
with LaGrange, Orell and Prospect in 1935, Railroad passenger
service was also reduced but managed to survive because of its
freight business. Although in 1959 it too was discontinued.

With the coming of the automobile as the most popular mode
of transportation in Jefferson County many changes took place in
housing patterns, development and real estate. As the population
grew in the city and county there were many instances of annex-
ation of county land into the city to expand the city tax base.
In addition numerous smaller cities were incorporated and carved
out of the county. Currently there are over seventy small cities
in the county outside the city of Louisville. The city of Shively,
in the southwestern portion of the county, was incorporated in

1938 and quickly thereafter annexed the area that contained
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eight major distilleries which gave them a greatly expanded
tax base. = . - Louisville had planned to annex this area.

General Electric brought a plant into the Buechel area
in 1951 and immediately the city attempted to annex it. This never
was accomplished because of the creation of the city of West
Buechel. These types of annexation fights are continuing at
the present time.

During the 1940s. St. Matthews continued to be a key shipping
point for potatoes. During World War II German prisoners of war
were pressed into service as laborers on the farms and at the
exchange. But by 1952 few potatoes were being grown in St. Matthews
and the exchange closed in 1953. Land became more valuable, ‘
the farms were subdivided into home sites and the few remaining
farmers went into the dairy business.

The twentieth century ushered in some new building types and
styles but also continued certain styles which had emerged at the
end of the nineteenth century. One style which bridged the turn:
of the century was the Neo-Colonial Revival. By the late nineteenth
century the community of Louisville and Jefferson County had a
reasonable number: of trained architects. A number of the houses
built in the county in the last quarter of the nineteenth century
were architect-designed. The structures from the early twentieth
century which exhibit chargcteristics of the Neo-Colonial Revival
include JF-318,53I%539%541% 543%551%567%587, 5687603, 623, 624, 635,
642,644,646,655,658. The architects working in this style include
JsB. & E.T. Hutchings. Eusebius Hutchings, son of John Bacon
Hutchings, had trained at the Ecole-Des-Beaux Arts and was in-
volved in numerous structures in the county and city especdally
in the Glenview area. The Hutchings also worked in other revival
styles popular in xhe early twentieth century such as the Tudor
Revival. Examples of this occur in the Glenview area (JF-548%5472
548. A group of houses in an"English Manor" style occurs, in the
eastern part of the county.(JF-532%544%545%556%'557,565,569%. A
number of these were designed by the respected firm of Nevin
& Morgan who specialize in various revival styles. The Cardinal
Hill Reservoir building (JF-88) is a unique structure in the county
built during the 1920s. The only truly "Modern " residence is by
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Bruce Goff (JF-118), it is an unusual and creative structure.

By the second half of the twentieth century very few comm: -
munities, if any, had escaped from the intensive, promiscuous
development that seemed to accompany big business and accelerated
population growth. Most areas were not as fortunate as Anchorage,
whose efforts to control growth and appearance led to the creation
of a Planning and Zoning Commission in 1938, which effectively
retained the original character of the Anchorage community
through the following thirty years of explosive suburban growth.
By the 1970s: Jefferson County had undergone a major transition
from agricultural to manufacturing and commercial orientation.

The vast mumber of jobs created by the county's economic trans-
formation replaced rural lifestyles with an intensive suburban use
of land. But, interspersed with the suburban expanse, some of the
structures of an earlier age remain, physical reminders of a
different way ofilife.
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Nitta Yuma Residential Historic District (map 6)

Description

The Nitta Yuma Residential Historic District is set
on bluffs overlooking the Ohio River in the far eastern
part of Jefferson County. Nitta Yuma is an Indian phrase

meaning "high ground".

This family enclave was founded in the 1890S when three
Louisville business men bought the James Todd home and one
hundred acres from his estate., It is eight miles from Louisville
and was on the interurban line. Mr. George Garvin Brown,

Mr. William Frederick Booker and Mr. Charles Peaslee were the
purchasers. Mr. Booker and Mr. Peaslee were associated with the
Peaslee-Gaulbert Paint Company.

They hired the chief engineer of the city Qf Louisville
to build the roads at Nitta Yuma. Major Joseph D, Claybrook
moved into the Todd farm house,a frame structure (JF-566) which
was the original structure at Nitta Yuma. A descendent
of the Booker family now resides there.

The Bookers and Browns built summer homes both of which
are now gone. Other houses were built for members of the
family. The Nitta Yuma Company was set up and each family
paid his prorata share of the upkeep of roads, barns, gardens,
tennis court, etc.

In 1905 a Louisville archltect E.T. Hutchings, who
designed houses in Glenview and other locations, designed
a Colonial Revival home for Maria L. Booker who marrled
Alex Galt Robinson. This home is still owned by the same
family (JF-567).

About 1900 another home was built for a member (JF-568).
It, too, is in the Colonial Revival Style.
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The newest home in the Nitta Yuma District was
built c.1923 for Robinson Brown.

The grounds at Nitta Yuma were designed by Olmsted
Brothers who had designed Louisville's Cherokee Park
and other parks in the 1890's.

/
é% 4}‘ Four houses are within the Nitta Yuma Historic
Y éy , District. There are other houses further along Nitta
N Yuma Road which are newer but they are not visible from
AV the older part. The historic structures are melded together
o not only by family ties, but fine landscaping and the fine

design of the structures. There are no intrusions.

Significance

The Nitta Yuma Historic District is a unique enclave

in eastern Jefferson County. The older portion has
been untouched by commercialism or many changes. It is
still an idyllic setting overlooking the Ohio River
and most of the homes are still lived in by descendents
of the original families who founded Nitta Yuma. It was

set up as a business with everyone paying their
own expenses yet all enjoying all of the benefits. This
atmosphere is still prevalent today.

The landscaping from the stone entrance gates
to the magnificent old trees creates an ambience which
is very special. The structures relate well to each
other, all but the vernacular farm house being in a
revival style.

The significance of the district lies in the com-
bination of the family ties,the unique enclave, the finely
designed structures and the landscape setting. The
ambience has been preserved by the family members.
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Boundaries

The boundaries consist of the four (JF 566,567,568,569)
property lots as indicated on the property map (map44)
This indicates the 31gn1f1cant structures in Nitta Yuma.
There are no intrusions in the district.
Block w 7
Lots 18,19,24,25
The acreage is 9.77
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Glenview Residéntial Historic District (map 5)

Description

Glenview is a residential community which is an
outgrowth of the old Fincastle Club which was located
on the hills rising above the meadow near the Ohio River at
the Glenview Station.

The name Glenview had come from Berry Hill (JF-552)
which had its name changed to Glenview by James C. McFerran
the new owner of the Berry Hill Estate in the late 1860s.

The Louisville, Harrods Creek and Westport Railroad was
begun in the mid 1870s. It was financed largely by
subscription of residents along its right of way. It never
made it to Westport. However, there was a station at Glenview
by 1879 according to the 1879 Atlas. The current station
dates to about 1887. It has served as the post office since
the turn of the-century. The interurban . stopped running
in 1935. This station is the only non-residential structure
in the Glenview Residential Historic Districtj;however, it
is a charming structure which adds to the ambience.

The area is heavily wooded and a number of the structures
are back from the road in the trees.

The Fincastle Club was an early country club which
began in the late 1880s. The initial land for the club
was donated by John Green owner of Berry Hill (JF552)
at that time. The clubhouse was three stories and was of
stucco and frame and had many ve;andas and porches, Around
the clubhouse were five cottages which were summer homes
for Louisville's finest families. Judge and Mrs. A.P. Humphrey
decided to renovate the clubhouse after it had been empty for a
few years. They turned it into a hospitable home.

In other parts of Glenview homes were also being built.
The Allen family built three homes which form the core of
the district (JF-546,547,548). Another home near by
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but not in the district was built for another family member
(JF-539). Major Charles J.F. Allen (1834-1911) had

graduated from Yale University and Harvard Law School and practlced
in Louisiana until the outbreak of the Civil War. ~He

was assigued to Louisville in the paymaster's department

and became a major. After the war he was in the wholesale
hardware business with William B. Belknap. Allen had

married Caroline Belknap (1846-1897). He built a house
(JF-546) after her death in Glenview overlooking the Ohio
River. Allen hired a local architect,J.B. Hutchings(1859-1917),
who designed an eclectic house which reflected the Shingle
Style as well as combining Tudor and Georgian motifs. The
interior is very open in plan.

A home was built for Lafon Allen (B.1871) son of C.J.F. Allen
in about 1910. Lafon had graduated from Yale and the
University of Louisville Law School. He practiced law
locally and in 1921 became judge of the Chancery Court of
the Jefferson Circuit Court., Lafon Allen's home is a Tudor
Revival by J.B. Hutchings (JF-547). The third Allen home
in the district is the Cook House (JF-548) which was built
for Lafon Allen's daughter Caroline in 1938 by Nevin and
Morgan, revival style architects. It is an especially fine
structure,

These homes built for the Allen family form the
core of the Glenview District. However, other structures
are also important.

The most visually striking home (JF-551) was built for
Charles T. Ballard, president of the Ballard Flour Mills.
It was designed by the favored Glenview architect J.B. Hutchings
in ¢.1910. Ballard had graduated from Yale and after
several positions entered the milling business. He was president
of the Louisville Board of Trade for four terms. It was then
the home of Robert Worth Bingham, ambassador to the Court
of St. James'and publisher of the Courier-Journal and The
Louisville Times.
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This home with its vast grounds and entrance is a
significant feature in Glenview. On the grounds is an
amphitheater (JF-554) designed by Thomas Hastings of New York
on the site of the 0l1d Fincastle Club. An additional
structure is a modified Spanish influenced.structure (JF-549)
on the entrance road near the interurban station.

A home called Lansdowne which had been built about 1899
by Thruston Ballard, brother of C.T. Ballard, was demolished
in 1976.

There are no streetscape photographs because all of the
structures sit well back from the road and are surrounded

by trees and plantings.

Significance

This unspoiled enclave is significant both architecturally
and historically. The wooded area and the hills offer an
escape from the nearby city and this was the ambience the
original Glenview families sought. The houses and the inter-
urban station are all very fine structures, representative
of the late nineteenth and early twentieth century styles.
The residences were designed by highly respected firms from
Louisville. All of the structures were large but relatively
unpretentious and seemed to blend with the natural but controlled
landscape.

The presence of the interurban made it possible for
these highly important Louisville businessmen to live in the
suburban area of Glenview and commute easily to the city"
of Louisville. - )

The ambience of the landscape and the structures in
communion with the site set on the bluffs above the Ohio
River create a setting which is rarely fqQund in an urban

area.




Form No 10-300a
{Hev 10-74)

UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR ORNPS USEONLY
NATIONAL PARK SERVICE s T -

1980

; Rscéi\fég‘l;]m_ 1
NATIONAL REGISTER OF HISTORICPLACES | . - =
INVENTORY -- NOMINATION FORM

IDATE ENTERED

Historic Resources of Jefferson County

CONTINUATION SHEET ITEM NUMBER 8 PAGE 23

Boundaries

The boundaries are formed by the property lines of
the lots containing the structures (see map5 ). Other
nearby historic structures have not been included in the
district because of the presence of newer houses in
between. These other historic structures are nominated
individually within the Multiple Resource Nomination.

There as no intrusions in the Glenview Historic
District.
Blocks 11 & w 7
Lots 128,6,30,23,12,11,10
The acreage is 16.
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Preservation and restoration activities are going on in
every part of the Multiple Resource area, all over Jefferson
Countyes Inasmuch = as the majority of structures are resident-
ial and are private homes,they are being maintained on a
continual basis.' There are also a number which have recently
been restored or are currently undergoing restoration and
renovation. The owners of JF-196 have recently spent a great
deal of timey effort and money to restore and renovate their stone
and frame house. Another stone house, JF-171, is in the process
of renovation and there are many other examples. A number of
houses are in a continuous restoration and renovation process:
this would include the majority of the residential structures.

Several structures in Jefferson County have been aided by
HCRS funds including Springfields(JF-527), Clover Hill (JF-30),
and the Eight Mile House (JF-333). Springfields (JF-527) President
Zachary Taylor's home,has been meticulously restored and renovated
after damage from a tornado in 1974.

Preservation activities will be continued, promoted and
monitored by the Jefferson County Office of Historic Preservation
which was created by County Judge/Executive Mitch McConnell in
July of 1978. Since that time a Historic Preservation ordinance
has been passed and a Historic Preservation Commission created.
In addition, Community Development funds are being used in the
county to create a revolving fund to aid endangered properties.

Xy

The nomination includes three small districts in addition
to 168 individual- structures. Most of the sites . _
are distributed throughcut . the county with a majority in the
eastern and southeastern sections. Due to developmental patterns
and the presence of large agricultural holdings until late in
the nineteenth and into the twentieth century there are numerous
newer structures, commercial areas, highways, etc. which separate
the historic structures from one another. However, several
cohesive areas do exist: Glenview, Nitta Yuma and Anchorage.

All are residential in character and are well-landscaped and
heavily treed. The Glenview District has eight structures and is
that size mostly because of the fact that newer houses have

been interspersed among the old and create too high a percentage
of newer buildings. The Glenview District does represent the
central essence of Glenview and its development. The Nitta Yuma

¢4 % O\M,(,’ 4w - fﬂ/ﬁ
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Historic District was chosen because it is a unique enclave
for one group of families of significant structures. It is a
small district, four structures, because the compound was re-
stricted and private. The Anchorage Historic District has a
great concentration of historically and architecturally significant
structures. A relatively small district was chosen due to a number
of newer structures in close proximity. All of the historic
resources of the Anchorage community are nominated withih the
Multiple Resource Nomination. The Anchorage District is quite pure
and only contains eight structures which form a cohesive unit.

f

The results of the survey and inventory process have been
integrated into the planning:process. A new comprehensive plan
which has recently been implemented does take into account
the presence and significance  of structures listed on or ellglble
for the National Register and/or des1gnated under local ordlaance.r

The area of 81gnificance for each structure may be found
under Item 30 on each individual form, :
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UPPER RIVER ROAD

NOTE: The following is an addendum to the Statement of Significance for the Multiple
Resources Area nomination prepared in October 1979. It treats the collection of

early 20th century resources located generally in the Upper River Road region of north-
eastern Jefferson County which were not submitted originally but held instead for
informal review by the National Register and SHPO. There Upper River Road submissions
were proposed for nomination as an amendment to the MRA on 20 May 1983.

The thirteen individual early 20th century dwellings of the Upper River Road area (as
well as the Nitta Yuma--National Register, 1983--and Glenview historic districts)

_represent important illustrations of several major historical and architectural trends.
A11 designed and constructed with the highest architectural standards in mind, these
grand country estates were meant to furnish prominent city-dwellers with access to
country living, an urban and cultural phenomenon with parallels in the park and boule-
vard movement and the garden suburb.

The architectural values expressed in the Upper River Road houses of the period stressed
traditionalism and correctness. The styles were by and large based on Georgian models,
reinterpreted in individual cases to conform better to semi-rural sites. In some
instances, Tudor Revival or Arts and Crafts-inspired dwellings answered owners' interest
in finding a style appropriate for manor life. In any event, the choices were all
related to English architectural sources, for anything else would not create a relaxed
yet tasteful impression.

Aside from using the proper architectural style to project the right image, the owners

of the Upper River Road estates sought out the proper designers. These local--and
sometimes out-of-town--firms seem to have developed design in traditional modes into a
speciality. The names of Louisville firms active in the area include John Bacon Hutchings,
E.T. Hutchings and McDonald and Dodd. The availability of numerous other able architects
to these wealthy consumers implies that owners not only stuck with familiar and proven
designers but probably also attached some status to the selection of the same handful of
choices. (Townsend and Fleming of Buffalo designed one Upper River Road residence;
Bryant Fleming alone is credited with several gardens; Thomas Hastings had one Glenview
commission; and Josephe E. Chandler of Boston did one house.) In every instance, the
houses are outstanding in terms of their workmanship and quality of materials, are all
intelligently planned and sited, and are all of considerable--and sometimes monumental--
scale as well as size.
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Life in the sylvan countryside northeast of Louisville meant more, however, than just
status for wealthy urbanites. The migration of these city-dwellers--who remained active
in the City's affairs--illustrates a reform impulse found elsewhere in the early 20th-
century American city. The residents of the Upper River Road area found the countryside
peaceful, morally and physically regenerative, and even educational. But every owner
remained Tinked to the city, either through its business or its culture. Like the garden
suburb or the development of urban parks, the resident of the Upper River Road estate
sought to combine the benefits of both city and rural life while also reducing the
disadvantages. The isolated estates of the Upper River Road area marked the genesis of
modern suburbanization locally, preceeding by only a few years the widespread develop-
ment of Louisville's outer subdivisions.
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Books

Art Work in Louisville. Chicago, 1903.

Battle, J.H.; Perrin, W.H.; Kniffin, G.C. Kentucky, A History of the
State. Louisville, Kentucky: F.A. Battey Publisher, 1885.

Biographical Encyclopedia of Kentucky. Cincinnati, Ohio: J.M.
Armstrong and Co., 1878.

Bodley, Temple. History of Kentucky. Louisville, Kentucky, 1928.

Citizens' Historical Assoclation. Indianapolis, Indiana, 1937.

Collins, Lewis and Collins, Richard, ed. Collins' Historical
Sketches of Kentucky, vols. 1 and II. Frankfort, Kentucky:
Kentucky Historical Society, 1966 (reprint).

Cook, Jeffrey. The Architecture of Bruce Goff. Harper and Row:
1978.

Downing, A.J. The Architecture of Country Houses, 1850. Dover Re-
print, 1969.

Fern Creek Woman's Club. Fern Creek: Lore and Legacy-200 Years.
Consolidated Printing Service, Inc., 1976.

Gaar Genealogy. Louisville, Kentucky, 1894.

Greater Louisville-Illustrated. Louisville, Kentucky: National
“Publishing Co., 1908. :

Hallenberg, Leone W. Anchorage: A Casual Gathering of Facts and
Stories from the Past and Present of a Unique Kentucky Town.
Anchorage: Anchorage Press, 1959.

Hiatt, Cora Chenoweth. History of the Chenoweth Family.

‘Hilton, George W. and Due, John F. ~The Electric Interurban Railway
i% America. Stanford,California: Stanford University Press,
1960.

Jeffersontown Specialty Co., Inc. Jeffersontown's Past 175 Years,
1797-1972. Jeffersontown, Kentucky, 1972.

Jobson, Robert C. A History of Early Jeffersontown and Southeast
Jefferson County, Kentucky. Baltimore: Gateway Press, Inc.,
1977.

Johnston, J. Stoddard, Ed. Memorial History of Louisville from its
First Settlement to the Year 1896. Chicago § New York:

American Biographical Publishing Co., 1896.

Keith, H.Todd, Ed. Middletown Memories 175th Anniversary 1797-1972.
Historic Middletown, Inc., 1972.

Liberty National Bank and Trust Company. Anchorage Revisited.
Liberty National Bank. Louisville, Kentucky, 1976.

Lipcomb, Alexander Bagby. Commercial History of the Southern States.
Louisville: J.P. Morton § Co., 1903. T
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M.Joblin & Company Louisville-Past and Present: Its Industrial
History as Exhibited in the Life and Labors of its Leading Men,
LouisvilIle: John P. Morton § Co., 1875.

McCready, R.L. History of St. Lukes Church Louisville. 1940.

McDonald, Cornelia. A Diary with Reminiscences of the War and
Refugee Life in the Shenandoah Valley. Nashville, Tennessee,
1935,

Mc'Murtrie, Henry. Sketches of Louisville and Its Environs.
Louisville, Kentucky: S. Penn Jr., 1819.

Okolona Women's Club. History of the Okolona Area. Louisville,
Kentucky: Eve Prlntlng Company, 1956.

Owens, W.T. Who's Who in Louisville. Louisville, Kentucky: 1926.

Stapp, Mary Jane Yann Pub, The Early History of Valley Station,
Kentucky. Valley Station, Kentucky, 1959.

Sulzer, Elmer G. Ghost Railroads of Kentucky. Indianapolis: V.A.
Jones § Co., 1967.

The Lyndon Homemakers Club. Lyndon Lore: A Historic Account of the
Lyndon Community with Numerous I1llustrations of a Bygone Era.”
The Lyndon Homemakers CIub, Pub., 197Z.

Thomas, Elizabeth P. 01d KentuckX Homes and Gardens. Louisville:
1939,

Who's Who in Louisville, 1912.

Williams, L.A. § Company. History of the Ohio Falls Cities and
their Counties, with Illustrations and Biographical Sketches.
vols. I and II. Cleveland, Ohio: 1882.

Wood, Edith. Middletown's Days and Deeds: The Story of 150 years
of Living in an old Kentucky Town. Anchorage, Kentucky, 1946.

Thomas, Samuel W., ed. Views of Louisville Since 1766. Louisville: The Courier Journal
and The Louisville Times, 1971

Directories

Jefferson County Rural Directory.

Louisville City Directories.

The Kentucky State Gazetteer and Business Directory 1865-1896.
R.L. Polk and Co., and A.C. Danser, Detroit, Michigan and
Louisville, Kentucky.
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Government Documents and Public Records

Jefferson Circuit Court Cases.

Jefferson County (KY) Deed Books.

Jefferson County (KY) Division Books.

Jefferson County (KY) Inventory and Settlement Books.

Jefferson County (KY) Minute Order Books.

Jefferson County (KY) Tax Records.

Jefferson County (KY) Will Books.

Jeffersontown (KY) Minute Books.

Louisville Chancery Court Cases.

U.S. Department of Transportation; Federal Highway Administration;
Kentucky Department of Transportation. Final Environmental
Section 4 (f) Statement, December, 1978.

Interviews

Mrs. Charles S. Blakely
Creel Brown, Jr.
Charles Castner

Mrs. Paul Dent

Mrs. A. Robert Doll
George C. Eady

Miss Elizabeth Ewing
R.B. Fenley

Nelson Goodwin

Mrs. Henry Groves
Charles Horner

Mrs. Charles Horner
R.J. Kennedy, Sr.
Iris Peers

Mary Oeschli Ruckriegel
Mrs. Frank Simon
Col. Frank Thompson
William Tway

Miss Edith Wood
George H. Yater

Mrs. Henry Fitzhugh
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Maps and Atlases

Atlas of Jefferson and Oldham Counties (1879) Beers and Lanagan.

Atlas of the City of Louisville and Environs (1884) G.M. Hopkins,
Philadelphia, Pa.

John Filson's Map of Kentucky, 1784. Philadelphia, Pa.

Map of Jefferson County, Kentucky (1858) G.T. Bergmann, Louisville,
Kentucky.

Map of Kentucky and the Northwest Territory, 1819. Luke Munsell,
surveyor and publisher.

Survey Map of the Jefferson Southern Pond Draining Company. May 30,
1868.

U.S. Geological Survey Map 1912, Jefferson County.

Miscellaneous

Cardinal Hill Reservoir, plaque on building.

Historic Middletown, Inc., Historical Markers.

Thatcher, Hon. Maurice H. SQeeches in the House of Representatlves
16 February 1925 and 28 June 1926.

Newspapers

The Anderson News, Lawrenceburg, Kentucky.

The Courier-Journal, Louisville, Kentucky.

The Daily Journal, Louisville, Kentucky.

The Herald-Post, Louisville, Kentucky.

The Jeffersonian, Jeffersontown, Kentucky.

The Jeffersontown Reporter, Jeffersontown, Kentucky.
The Kentucky Gazette.

The Lexington Leader, Lexington, Kentucky.

The Louisville Times, Louisville, Kentucky.

The Oldham Era, Lagrange, Kentucky.

The Shively Newsweek, Shively, Kentucky.

The Voice of St. Matthews, Louisville, Kentucky.




Form No. 10-300a
(Rev. 10-74)

UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR
NATIONAL PARK SERVICE

NATIONAL REGISTER OF HISTORIC PLACES
INVENTORY -- NOMINATION FORM

Historic Resources of Jefferson County
CONTINUATION SHEET ITEM NUMBER 9 PAGE g

Periodicals

American Architect

Antiques. New York, N.Y.

Louisville Monthly Magazine. Louisville, Kentucky, 1879.

The Filson Club History Quarterly. Louisville, Kentucky.

The Germanna Record, Memorial Foundation of the Germanna Colonies in
Virginia, Inc., Richmond, Virginia.

The L. § N. Employee's Magazine. Louisville, Kentucky.

The Register of the Kentucky State Historical Society, Frankfort,
Kentucky.

Trolley Sparks

Tyler's Quarterly Historical and Genealogical Magazine.

Special Collections

William Marshall Bullitt Papers, The Filson Club, Louisville, Kentucky.

Warren K. Frederick Collection, University of Louisville Archives and
Records Center. ‘

D.X. Murphy Collection, Original Architectural Plans, The Filson Club,
Louisville, Kentucky.

Original architectural plans for JF-532, owned by Owsley Brown II.

Original architectural plans for JF-544, owned by Dr. Paul Dent.

Original architectural plans for JF-557, owned by A.Robert Doll.

Original architectural plans for JF-619, owned by Thomas Hancock.

Sinclair, Ward and Browning Harold. Our Suburbs-Then and Now. (A
collection of 17 articles appearing as a series in The Louisville
Times, October 1965-November 1965; Hardbound at the Filson Club
Library.)

University of Louisville Local History Series, University of
Louisville Archives and Records Center.

Urban and Regional History Reference File, University of Louisville
Archives and Records Center.

Surveys

Preservation: Metropolitan Preservation Plan, Falls of the Ohio
Metropolitan Council of Governments (1973).
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Survey of Historic Sites in Kentucky, Kentucky Heritage Commission,’ Frankfort, KY.
National Register of Historic Places, files, Kentucky Heritage Commission, Frankfort, KY.

Unpublished Papers

Barr, Lawrence L. “A New Look at the History of Soldiers Retreat,
1979, LoulsV111e, Kentucky.

Bryan, J.Edward. " Notes of Travel September 1858, The Filson Club,
Louisville, Keniucky.

Bullitt, Neville. “01d Homes and Landmarks of Louisville and
Jefferson CountxJ'lhe Filson Club, Louisville, Kcatucky.

Burlingame, Lucy w.n. ''Nitta Yuma." Unpubllshed paper, 1962.

Carpenter, Kathy L. '"Hurstbourne: A Gothic Revival Mansion."
Unpublished research paper, 1977.

Dorsey, R.O. "History and Pictures of St. Matthews'"(1968).

Everbach, Lyndon. = ine Story ot 'Half Penny'{ Louisville, Kentucky.

Frank Dravo Dlary, Ihe Filson Club, LOUlSVLlle, Kentucky.

Gill, R. Scott. "Glenview. Kentucky, 1976. Unpublished research

paper.
Hoskins, Harry P. "Historical Sketch of Jefferson County™(1939)
Katzmann, Geneva Aline. "The Homes and Peopie of Uld Shepherdsville
Road,'" 1958.

Keith, Sally. "Windy Hills: A Neighborhood History."

Kentucky Military Institute records, no date.

McCaulley, Mary E. Rush. "The History of Pennsylvania Run
Presbyterian Church,"1979.

Omer family file, The Fllson Club, Louisville, Kentucky.

Pierce, Albert E. '"Ormsby Famllles of Lou13v111e, Kentucky,'" 1968.

Sallee, Helen Hite. "Col. Abraham Hite. NSDAR, Fincastle Chapter,
Louisville, Kentucky.
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Boundaries
Lot and Block

Where possible, all sites (with several exceptions) are
identified by lot and block number as recorded.

Bpundaries of certain specified individually nominated sites are
those recorded for the given lot and block number in the map
books at the Office of Property Valuation, Jefferson County.

Boundaries of sites within a district are identified by block
and lot number as recorded in the map books at the Office of
Property Valuation of Jefferson County and are delineated on the
appropriate district map.

House centered in one-half or one acre square

Boundaries of individually-nominated rural sites are determined
by a square space of either one acre or 3 acre with the house at
the approx1mate center, and may include significant outbuildings
mentioned on the individual inventory forms.

Perimeter

Significant outbuildihQs outside the specified acreage
centered on the house and within the specified block and let
are bounded by a line parallel to and ten feet outside their peri»
meters.

The perimeter method was also used to determine the boundaries

of the following irregular sites.

JF-75,76,77 Waverly Hills

JF-279 Leatherman House

JF-434 Ormsby House

JF-521 Indian Hill Stock Farm Springhouse
JF-336 Hurstbourne Farm Gatehouse

JF-634 Kentucky Lunatic Asylum

JF-550 Glenview Interurpan Station

1
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Kentucky Heritage Commission
William Broberg-Historian
Anthony James-Arch. Historian
- Kenneth Gibbs-Arch. Historian
Carolyn Torma-Historian

Mary Cronen Oppel-Historian
Lee Walker-Historian

James Oppel-Historian
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~¢ 11. Rockledge Substantive Heview | }é /Keeper accodt ZZ@;& ézﬂdﬂz_,a 6’[[@‘5‘/@
Attest
12. Shwab House Entered in the Keeper eloviyBme  shesy>
National Register
Attest
Entered in th ;
13. Shady Brook Far ¢ e Keeper a Zggm{ééﬁz gée_/ ;
ady arm National Register P 77
— Attest
: Entered 1n the ‘1‘—«//6*-44 '
14. Midlands Ixt40us) Regluter Keeper OCZZZ 225 & /eA’ 5
Attest
. 15.. - wassrell YU T4 b e s A v SThak
15. Reel, Jacob, House ram et Pag tpie . Keeper 04,(;& 4 & f
Attest
16. Keeper
Attest
17. Keeper
Attest
18. Keeper
Attest
19. Keeper
Attest
20. Keeper

Attest
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21. Funk's Branch/Funk House SubistantYve Feviow é‘\K eeper %AJ ’ei 25&,«(111 /(m&,u/) //l)!ﬁ?

Dl TS0 ICH pRTETiTe

_ Attest
. A s '6 ' E 3 ol ” ; - . ;
92. Carmichael House ubstantive Heview é;/Keeper Acigl VZ/@% Ardea Yok
, Attest ’
Substantive ileviey ]
23. Masonic Hall gﬁIKeeper gM neltdio ‘7/4?/£f
Attest
whatenblve Meview C : g Z , , E
24. TFisher House s 7;é;/Keeper‘ / ) W/
' Attest
25. Tyler, Robert, Place Substantive Review é,,]Keeper cjg@ﬁ (2 1}_1‘4;‘!& Aﬁ&m ’7(/&,6?
| Attest |
ubstentive Heview
96. Rockdale . é/ Keeper acepst M %clw/J W/
4
‘ L Attest
fubatantive leview :
27. Seaton House - Keeper P‘U\Qdf ??Q}A '”E'% !sz
Sunahenblve Hoevlew AAttest A
98. Gilliland House #/Keeper 7 i w@ A 2 /47
v | Attest
99. Tyler, Moses, House Substantive Reﬁe%/ Keeper g cerfl] %Ii,g;' b /4/@@&%-‘ Vi3s3
Attest
30. Bryan, William F., House g;;ba’cs.%iﬁ Keviewéé’(Keeper , !3 , QZ Z : 7[; &7,
| Attest
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31. Winchester House Substantive Review (é{ Keeper

Attest
R

39. ﬁrown, Theodore, House  Substantive Review c(afKeeper

Attest

33. Brown, James, House Substantive Heview 2/Kt-:‘(EPer
Attest

34. Lynnford/Lyndon Hall Substantive Review Keeper

v Attest

35. Soldiers Retreat Substantive Heview &/Keeper

i Attest
W 36. Middletown Inn gubstantive Heview Keeper
Attest

37. Davis Tavern Substantive Review 0/@/ Keeper
Attest‘

. H e
38. Marders, Jefferson, House Substantive Heview 6&7[Keeper

| |  Attest
Peten¥iva W
39. Beynroth House Bubate eview

ftored in the / T Y T
ational Reglsterf -5'//19‘/

wrn/ g ~

40. Hord, Robert, House

Keeper

substantive Heview 6 Keeper
Attest
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41, Dr. John Lewis House Substantive Review Keeper M ‘)ﬂql/’«) 4’/51‘ //z54

| A*testv —

42. | Croghan—Blaken‘bake:j:9 glgp/s;& N;;lgiifﬁ’;‘i;jv{ew{é{ Keepeif d«ace*éa W/M 7o/93
Attest

43. Yager House Sublalantive fevTop (/é{/ Keeper
Attest

44, Nachand House Substantive Heview Keeper 4 77@
Attest

45. Dr. John Murray Farm Substantive Keview él/ Keeper M/’f W /4IMLW/J 7/,0,/6?
Attest

f16. Murray, Jesse, House Srbaiuntive Kevicw Keeper W .

- Attest

47. Indian Hill Stock Farm/ Substantive Reviey Keeper __M /74{//4‘
{

Veech House .

Attest
48. Indian Hill Stock Farm  -Ubstantive Fev¥ay Keeper fodbumn PWA 7//‘77512
Springhouse PDa&jean/sh o TECTrans —
Attest

. P B4 =z .
‘ P;)O X QAN //3
49. Taylor, Zachary, National [iaixntive hevTow Keeper ; arys

Cemetery/Taylor Burial Ground

/
Attest

50. Berry Hill k‘*‘“’;'“"“g“‘l‘“” erTew é”\KeepeP 5%6@;0[’ [)A/tbkj{ ’({WLWA 7//-2,473
Attest
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51. Allison-B ick H (
ison-Barrickman House substantive Reviow G/m Keeper
Attest
52. Fichugh House Slibﬂ't&lntiv@ TYEVieW éﬂ,KeepeP
Attest
byt s Hestew
_ 53. Ashbourne fq/Keepe['
Attest
ﬂ/ 54. Forrester House Substantive Review Keeper
Attest
55. Williams, Eustace, House
’ ’ Svbatantive Heview ﬁ/ Reeper
f Attest
SLidtalibove | SO ey ,
\,/516. May, Robert, House - o evLow é/,/Keeper
Attest
Substantive Review '
57. Bonnycot gw/Keeper
fubatantive Hoview Attest
58. Hausgen House éleeeper
Attest
59. Presbyterian Manse T LYe Herd oy
resby an & Heviog éw{Keeper
Attest
60. Newland Log House e YR Ry Ly

é/Keeper

G Attest

Date/Signature
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61. Bonavita-Weller House Substantive Review L{ﬁg,Keeper c AL z//pd /R[5
Attest
betentive Heview
62. Walker, James, House Subs é}IKeeper 1./ / AT
Attest
63. Garr House Substantive Review D/lf? Keeper Q' ﬁ Z : 5 7/; i
Attest 7
64. Central Kentucky Lunatic éw(Keeper 1200 pl . é % ﬁ: 722/;?
Asylum Substantive Heview :
' Attest
65. Twin Gates Carriage House /Keeper %&M@
subs LaX1tlve ey ey
Attest
66. Sherley Mansion Substantive Reviey &,\Keeper 4 » / i)
Attest
67. Gwathmey, Richard, House ‘ é(;) Keeper (¢ ‘. é A1 2/
Substantive Heview
Attest
68. Bank of Middletown ‘ O ' o
- Ciatave wovies [0 KeSPer  Glept (b Ardsus 742453
Attest
69. Hoke, Andrew, House Substentive kevicy {"/ Keeper MMM 3
Attest
70. Gardener's Cottage/ &Substentive kcviey Keeper ;33 éuéj;uum ﬁég}ﬁ ji b {{z;

Sherley Mansion
@ ‘ Attest
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71. Carriage House/Sherley Mansion Keeper

TRAbentive Vewing  Attest

72. Clore, James, House eeper

Attest

73. Jeffersontown Colored 8chool , Keeper
Substantive Review

Attest

74, Temple Bodley Summer House jéKeeper
Substantive Wavlew
Attest
Keeper
Attest
Keeper
Attest
Keeper
Attest
Keeper
Attest
Keeper
Attest
Keeper

Attest
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